Genesee County Land Bank Authority Blight Elimination Program

Invitation for Bids- LB 25-001 Environmental Abatement & Disposal of Asbestos and
Hazardous Materials & Demolition and Disposal of Residential and Commercial Structures in
Genesee County
ADDENDUM #2
May 2, 2025

The following information is to be incorporated into the bidding and contract documents and
acknowledged by all bidders for the above referenced project. Bids submitted that do not acknowledge
this Addendum will be deemed incomplete and may be rejected on such basis.

1. Edited formulas on LB 25-001 Bid Tab on box.com. Make sure that Excel sheet pricing
matches bid amount and that all columns and rows add the pricing correctly.

2. 1606 Maplewood Ave. Flint, MI (PID 41-08-207-006) — Assume the transite as asbestos
containing and bid to abate. We are conducting further sampling of the transite to
ensure it is non-detect. If the sample is confirmed to be non-detect, we will deduct the
cost of the transite at the price indicated on the Unit Price Schedule for Non-Scope
Work Add/Deduct.

3. Added Disclosure of Environmental Violations (Attachment 1)

4. Revised sample contract (Attachment 2).

Each bidder must acknowledge receipt of this addendum on IFB SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS
CHECKLIST.

**END OF ADDENDUM**

Prepared by:

Genesee County Land Bank @(E\

452 S. Saginaw St., Second Floor fromyr
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DISCLOSURE ENVIRONMENTAL VIOLATIONS

In accordance with Michigan Public Act 55 of 2024, if involved in an asbestos abatement project

with a local government or land bank authority, an asbestos abatement contractor, demolition
contractor, or any subcontractor of the asbestos abatement contractor or demolition
contractor must disclose to the local government or land bank authority if that asbestos
abatement contractor, demolition contractor, or subcontractor is subject to an active
administrative consent order or consent judgment, or has entered into, or is in negotiations to
enter into, an administrative consent order or consent judgment, with the department of
environment, Great Lakes, and energy or another environmental regulatory agency for any
violations of environmental regulations.

Bidder certifies, to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it, its principals, and all
subcontractors:

1. Are not subject to an active administrative consent order or consent judgment;

2. Have not entered into, or is not in negotiations to enter into, an administrative consent
order or consent judgment, with the Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and
Energy or another environmental regulatory agency for any violations of environmental
regulations.

| understand that a false statement on this certification may be grounds for the rejection of this
proposal or the termination of the award/contract.

Name and Title of Authorized Representative

Name of Participant Agency or Firm

Signature of Authorized Representative

Date

LIl am unable to certify to the above statement. Attached is my explanation.
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Genesee County Land Bank Blight Elimination Program and
(FUNDING SOURCE) Contract for (SCOPE)
— BID#: YY-#it#

THIS CONTRACT made and entered into(DATE), between (CONTRACTOR), hereinafter referred to as the
"Contractor" conducting business at (CONTRACTOR ADDRESS), and the Owner, GENESEE COUNTY LAND
BANK (GCLBA) conducting business at 452 S. Saginaw Street — 2nd Floor, Flint, Michigan 48502, hereinafter
referred to as "GCLBA".

The GCLBA recently received (DESCRIPTION OF FUNDING). GCLBA desires to engage the Contractor to
perform the services and obligations as defined in Request for Proposals #LB: YY-### SCOPE, including all
attachments thereto, hereinafter referred to as the "Work” as an independent contractor and not as an
employee(s) of and for the GCLBA. All work performed under this Contract is to comply with all relevant
rules, regulations, or orders applicable with respect to the funding source identified in this paragraph. This
Contract is intended to define the business relationship between the two entities with regards to general
demolition and disposal services undertaken for the (FUNDING SOUCE).

REPRESENTATIVES OF GCLBA AND CONTRACTOR. (DIRECTOR NAME), Executive Director of the GCLBA
has the authority to act on behalf of the GCLBA, (CONTRACTOR REPRESENTATIVE), has the authority to
act on behalf of the Contractor.

TERM OF CONTRACT. The respective duties and obligations of the contracting parties is for a period
beginning (DATE). The end date of term of service will be no later than (DATE), with all demolition
work, including backfill and winter-grade completed no later than (DATE), unless otherwise agreed to in
writing by both parties.

All demolition and winter-grade work must be completed and GCLBA inspections requested by (DATE)
and paperwork and payment requests must be submitted to the GCLBA Contract Manager by (DATE). All
final-grade work must be completed by (DATE) and final paperwork and payment requests must be
submitted to the GCLBA Contract Manager by (DATE).

Contractor will be responsible for any inspection fees to local municipality.

ORDER TO PROCEED. An Order To Proceed will be issued within 10 days of this contract execution upon
receipt of an original copy of Payment and Performance Bond and project work schedule, depending on
the readiness of the Work.

SECTION 3. Section 3 is a provision of the Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Act of 1968 that helps
foster local economic development, neighborhood economic improvement, and individual self-
sufficiency. Section 3 applies to HUD-funded Housing and Community Development projects.

For Section 3 covered contracts: The work to be performed under this Contract is a project assisted under
a program providing direct federal financial assistance from HUD and it’s subject to the requirements of
Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended (12 USC 1702). Section 3
requires that to the greatest extent feasible opportunities for training and employment be given to low-
and very low-income residents of the project area, and that contracts for work in connection with the
project be awarded to business concerns that provide economic opportunities for low- and very low-
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income persons residing in the metropolitan area in which the project is located. For businesses,
noncompliance with HUD’s regulations in 24 CFR Part 75 may result in sanctions, terminations of this
contract for default, and debarment or suspension from future HUD assisted contracts.

This IS/OR IS NOT a Section 3 covered contract.

SCOPE OF WORK. The Contractor will provide labor and/or materials for the Work.

Contractors must provide updated work schedules to the GCLBA. Contractor must submit all required
submittal documents as listed in Request for Proposals and Payment Request Packet (Contact
Attachment C).

FEES AND PAYMENT. The GCLBA will pay the Contractor a fixed price not to exceed ($$$5$). The GCLBA
will not pay for services beyond the funds available in the (FUNDING SOURCE) funding or the contract
amount, unless agreed to, in advance and in writing, by both parties to this Contract. Payment to
Contractor is made by the GCLBA on a net 30 to 60 day cycle upon receiving completed payment request
packet for each project/address and all required submittals (invoice, sworn statement, lien waivers,
manifests, etc.).

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY. Except as otherwise provided under 41 CFR Part 60, all contracts
that meet the definition of “federally assisted construction contract” in 41 CFR Part 60—1.3 must include
the equal opportunity clause provided under 41 CFR Part 60-1.4(b), in accordance with Executive Order
11246, “Equal Employment Opportunity” (30 FR 12319, 12935, 3 CFR Part 1964-1965 Comp., p. 339), as
amended by Executive Order 11375, “Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment
Opportunity,” and implementing regulations at 41 CFR Part 60, “Office of Federal Contract Compliance
Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor.”

During the performance of this contract, the contractor (Contractor) agrees as follows:

1) The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because
of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. The contractor
will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are
treated during employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation,
gender identity, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following:
employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or
termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including
apprenticeship. The contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and
applicants for employment, notices to be provided by the contracting officer setting forth the
provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.

2) The contractor will, in all solicitations or advancements for employees placed by or on behalf of
the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment
without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin.

3) The contractor will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against any employee or
applicant for employment because such employee or applicant has inquired about, discussed, or
disclosed the compensation of the employee or applicant or another employee or applicant. This
provision shall not apply to instances in which an employee who has access to the compensation
information of other employees or applicants as a part of such employee’s essential job functions
discloses the compensation of such other employees or applicants to individuals who do not
otherwise have access to such information, unless such disclosure is in response to a formal
complaint or charge, in furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, hearing, or action, including
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an investigation conducted by the employer, or is consistent with the contractor’s legal duty to
furnish information.

4) The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a
collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice, to be provided by
the agency contracting officer, advising the labor union or workers’ representative of the
contractor’s commitments under Section 202 of Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24,
1965, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and
applicants for employment.

5) The contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 of Sept. 24, 1965, and
of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.

6) The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order No. 11246 of
September 24, 1965, and by the rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or
pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the contracting
agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such
rules, regulations, and orders.

7) Inthe event of the contractor’s noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract
or with any of such rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be cancelled, terminated, or
suspended in whole or in part and the contractor may be declared ineligible for further
Government contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order No. 11246
of Sept. 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in
Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary
of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.

8) The contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (8) in every subcontract or
purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued
pursuant to Section 204 of Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such
provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The contractor will take such action
with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as may be directed by the Secretary of Labor
as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance: Provided,
however, that in the event the contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation
with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction, the contractor may request the
United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

NONDISCRIMINATION. The Contractor agrees that it will comply with the Elliot Larsen Civil Rights Act,
1976 PA 453, as amended, MCL 37.2101 et seq., the Persons with Disabilities Civil Rights Act, 1976 PA 220,
as amended, MCL 37.1101 et seq., and all other federal, State and local fair employment practices and
equal opportunity laws. The Contractor agrees that it shall not discriminate against an employee or
applicant of employment with respect to hire, tenure, terms, conditions, or privileges of employment, or
a matter directly or indirectly related to employment, because of race, color, religion, national origin, age,
sex, height, weight, marital status or a disability that is unrelated to the individual’s ability to perform the
duties of a particular job or position, and that it will require the same non-discrimination assurances from
any subcontractor who may be used to carry out duties described in this contract. Contractor covenants
that it will not discriminate against businesses that are owned by women, minorities or persons with
disabilities in providing Work covered by this Contract, and that it shall require the same assurances from
subcontractors. Breach of this contract shall be regarded as a material breach of this contract.

UNFAIR LABOR PRACTICES. The Contractor shall comply with the Employers Engaging in Unfair Labor
Practices Act, 1980 PA 278, as amended, MCL 423.321 et seq.
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CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT (40 U.S.C. 3701-3708). Where applicable, all
contracts awarded in excess of $100,000 that involve the employment of mechanics or laborers must
include a provision for compliance with 40 U.S.C. 3702 and 3704, as supplemented by Department of
Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5). Under 40 U.S.C. 3702 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards
Act, each contractor must be required to compute the wages of every mechanic and laborer on the basis
of a standard work week of 40 hours. Work in excess of the standard work week is permissible provided
that the worker is compensated at a rate of not less than one and a half times the basic rate of pay for all
hours worked in excess of 40 hours in the work week. The requirements of 40 U.S.C. 3704 are applicable
to construction work and provide that no laborer or mechanic must be required to work in surroundings
or under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous, or dangerous. These requirements do not
apply to the purchases of supplies or materials or articles ordinarily available on the open market, or
contracts for transportation or transmission of intelligence.

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT. This Contract and all attachments, as well as all other information
submitted by the Contractor to the County, are subject to disclosure under the provisions of MCL 15.231,
et seq., known as the “Freedom of Information Act”.

PUBLIC NOTICES AND PRESS RELEASES. The Contractor shall make no public notice or release of any
Contract related information without the prior written approval of the GCLBA.

RIGHTS TO INVENTIONS Made Under a Contract or Contract. Contracts or subcontracts for the
performance of experimental, developmental, or research work shall provide for the rights of the Federal
Government and the recipient in any resulting invention in accordance with 37 CFR part 401, “Rights to
Invention Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms. Under Government Grants,
Contracts and Cooperative Contracts,” and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency.

CLEAN AIR ACT (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387)
as amended. Contracts, grant agreements, and subgrants of amounts in excess of $150,000 must agree to
comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C.
7401-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387). Violations
must be reported to the Federal awarding agency and the Regional Office of the Environmental Protection
Agency (EPA).

DAVIS-BACON ACT, as amended (40 U.S.C. 3141-3148). When required by Federal program legislation,
all prime construction contracts in excess of $2,000 awarded by non—Federal entities must include a
provision for compliance with the Davis—Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 3141-3144, and 3146-3148) as
supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5, “Labor Standards Provisions Applicable
to Contracts Covering Federally Financed and Assisted Construction”). In accordance with the statute,
contractors must be required to pay wages to laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing
wages specified in a wage determination made by the Secretary of Labor or the State of Michigan,
whichever is higher.

In addition, contractors must be required to pay wages not less than once a week. The non—Federal entity
must place a copy of the current prevailing wage determination issued by the Department of Labor in
each solicitation. The decision to award a contract or subcontract must be conditioned upon the
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acceptance of the wage determination. The non—Federal entity must report all suspected or reported
violations to the Federal awarding agency.

COPELAND “ANTI-KICKBACK” ACT (40 U.S.C. 3145), as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations
(29 CFR Part 3, “Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work Financed in Whole or
in Part by Loans or Grants from the United States”). The Act provides that each contractor or Subrecipient
must be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person employed in the construction, completion,
or repair of public work, to give up any part of the compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled.
The non—Federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to the Federal awarding agency.

BYRD ANTI-LOBBYING AMENDMENT (31 U.S.C. 1352). Contractors who apply or bid for an award of
$100,000 or more shall file the required certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not
and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee
of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract,
grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Each tier shall also disclose any lobbying with non-
Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are
forwarded from tier to tier up to the non—Federal award.

DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION (Executive Orders 12549 and 12689). A contract or grant award (see 2
CFR 180.220) must not be made to parties listed on the governmentwide exclusions in the System for
Award Management (SAM), in accordance with the OMB guidelines at 2 CFR 180 that implement Executive
Orders 12549 (3 CFR Part 1986 Comp., p. 189) and 12689 (3 CFR Part 1989 Comp., p. 235), “Debarment
and Suspension.” SAM Exclusions contains the names of parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise
excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority other
than Executive Order 12549. All contractors and subcontractors must be vetted for debarment. If
debarment action has been taken against the contractor, the contract shall be terminated. If debarment
action has been taken against any subcontractor, the contractor shall provide an alternative subcontractor
within 10 days of notification. The debarred subcontractor may not work on the project.

FAIR HOUSING. Contractors must comply with the following:

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964; Public Law 88-352 implemented in 24 CFR Part 1: No person shall,
on the ground of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits
of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial
assistance from the Department of Housing and Urban Development. 24 CFR Part 570.904 and Title VI
of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, Equal Opportunity and Fair Housing

Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 as amended and the Genesee County Land Bank Authority Fair
Housing Policy as stated: “Equal housing opportunity for all persons, regardless of race, color, national
origin, religion, age, sex, familial status, marital status, sexual orientation or disability, is a fundamental
policy of the Genesee County Land Bank Authority (GCLBA). GCLBA is committed to diligence in assuring
equal housing opportunity and non-discrimination to all aspects of its housing activities. As a county
governmental authority undertaking housing activities, GCLBA has an ethical as well as legal imperative
to work aggressively to ensure that GCLBA housing programs comply fully with all local, state and federal
fair housing laws.”
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DOMESTIC PREFERENCES FOR PROCUREMENTS (2 CFR 200.322).
a. Asappropriate and to the extent consistent with law, the non—Federal entity should, to the greatest
extent practicable under a federal award, provide a preference for the purchase, acquisition, or use of
goods, products, or materials produced in the United States (including but not limited to iron, aluminum,
steel, cement, and other manufactured products). The requirements of this section must be included in
all subawards including all contracts and purchase orders for work or products under this award.
b. For purposes of this section:
(i) “Produced in the United States” means, for iron and steel products, that all manufacturing
processes, from the initial melting stage through the application of coatings, occurred in the
United States.
(ii) “Manufactured products” means items and construction materials composed in whole or in
part of non-ferrous metals such as aluminum; plastics and polymer-based products such as
polyvinyl chloride pipe; aggregates such as concrete; glass, including optical fiber; and lumber.

INTEREST OF THE GCLBA AND LOCAL PUBLIC OFFICIALS. The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief that: no member of the governing body of the GCLBA who exercises any
functions or responsibilities in connection with the administration of the GENESEE COUNTY BLIGHT
ELIMINATION PROGRAM or any of the listed funders under the preamble to this contract or the
invitation for bids, no other officer or employee or public official of the GCLBA, who exercises such
functions or responsibilities, and no member of the City Government of the City of Flint, shall have any
interest, direct or indirect, in this Contract. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid,
by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or
employee of the GCLBA.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST (2 CFR 200.318 and 24 CFR 570.611)

The general rule is that no persons who exercise or have exercised any functions or responsibilities with
respect to activities assisted, or who are in a position to participate in a decision making process or gain
inside information with regard to such activities, may obtain a financial interest or benefit from an assisted
activity, or have a financial interest in any contract, subcontract, or agreement with respect to an assisted
activity, or with respect to the proceeds of the assisted activity, either for themselves or those with whom
they have business or immediate family ties, during their tenure or for one year thereafter.

RETENTION AND ACCESS TO RECORDS. RECORDKEEPING REQUIREMENTS. Generally, all contractors and
subcontractors must maintain records and financial documents related to this contract until at least
December 31, 2031. U.S. Treasury may request the transfer of records of long-term value at the end of
such period. Wherever practicable, such records should be collected, transmitted, and stored in open and
machine-readable formats. See generally, 2 CFR 200.334 through 200.338.

All contractors and subcontractors must agree to provide or make available such records to Treasury upon
request, and to the Government Accountability Office (GAO), Treasury’s Office of Inspector General (OIG),
and their authorized representative in order to conduct audits or other investigations.

The Contractor shall maintain for a period of five (5) years or through December 31, 2031- whichever is
longer- all supporting documents, financial records, statistical records and all other records pertinent to
this contract. GCLBA, the State of Michigan, U.S. Department of Treasury, the Comptroller General of the
United States, or any of their duly authorized representatives as well as any and all relevant governmental
agencies shall have access to any books, documents, papers and records of the Contractor which are
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pertinent to a specific program for the purpose of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and
transcriptions.

UNIFORM GUIDANCE. If federally funded, this contract may be subject to the requirements set forth in
the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards,
(the “Uniform Guidance”) at 2 CFR 200.317 through 200.327. All payments requested under this program
should be accounted for with supporting documentation. All contractors and subcontractors should
maintain documentation evidencing that the Program Funds were expended in accordance with federal,
state, and local regulations.

RIGHT TO INSPECT. The GCLBA may, at reasonable times, inspect the place of business, or worksite of a
contractor or subcontractor which is pertinent to the performance of a contract or potential contract.

TERMINATION/RECOVERY OF PROGRAM FUNDS. State and federal funders of the GCLBA demolition
program require any Program Funds received pursuant to this Contract, that are expended in a manner
that fails to comply with state and/or federal rules and regulations and all other applicable laws to be
returned to the state or federal funding agency. The state or federal funding agency reserves the right to
monitor the GCLBA and their contractors and subcontractors and take such corrective action for
noncompliance as the funder deems necessary and appropriate, including but not limited to, termination
of the Grant Agreement and return of Program Funds previously provided thereunder.

GCLBA reserves the right to withhold funding and/or require repayment from the Contractor in cases
where the state or federal agency has requested repayment from GCLBA. In this case, if GCLBA has paid
the contractor for work not in compliance, it is entitled to repayment from the contractor.

In cases where the GCLBA determines that the contractor or subcontractor is not in compliance with the
grant agreement and/or state or federal law, GCLBA may withhold payments as described below.

Withholding Payment. The GCLBA reserves the right to withhold any payment amount:

a. in partorin whole until all work is completed in accordance with the Work as determined by the
GCLBA;

b. equivalent to the costs incurred for the correction of any errors, oversights, or deficiencies on
the part of the Contractor;

c. equivalent to costs incurred for the repair or replacement of any damage caused by the
Contractor, and equivalent to costs incurred for the correction of any hazardous condition,
undue disturbance, or nuisance caused by the Contractor;

d. inaccordance with Michigan Public Act 55 of 2024 whereby GCLBA may withhold payment if the
asbestos abatement contractor, demolition contractor, or any subcontractor of the asbestos
abatement contractor or demolition contractor on that asbestos abatement project enters into,
or begins negotiations to enter into, an administrative consent order or consent judgment with
the Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy or another environmental regulatory
agency within the time period the contract for that asbestos abatement project began that
involves violations of environmental regulations related to that project or other asbestos
abatement projects. Payment may be withheld until GCLBA receives verification from the
asbestos abatement contractor, the demolition contractor, the Department of Environment,
Great Lakes, and Energy, or another environmental regulatory agency that the violations of

» Page 7



environmental regulations related to the administrative consent order or consent judgment, or
a proposed administrative consent order or consent judgment, have been corrected.

ARBITRATION CLAUSE. Any dispute arising out of or relating to this contract that has not been resolved
by good-faith negotiations will be finally settled by arbitration in accordance with Michigan statute 2012
PA 371, MCL 691.1681 et. seq. by a sole arbitrator. The place of arbitration will be Flint, Michigan. The
arbitrator is not empowered to award damages in excess of any lawful limitations on damages provided
in this contract.

The statute of limitations of State of Michigan applicable to the commencement of the lawsuit will apply
to the commencement of an arbitration under this section.

LIQUIDATED DAMAGES. Contractor and the GCLBA recognize that time is of the essence for this Contract
and that GCLBA will suffer financial loss if the Work is not completed within the times specified in the
Term of Contract, plus any extensions thereof allowed in accordance of the Contract. The parties also
recognize the delays, expense, and difficulties involved in proving in a legal or arbitration proceeding the
actual loss suffered by GCLBA if the Work is not completed on time. Accordingly, instead of requiring any
such proof, GCLBA and Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a penalty),
Contractor shall pay GCLBA $250.00 for each day that expires after the time specified in Notices to
Proceed, as well as, Term of Contract for Substantial Completion until the Work is substantially complete.
After Substantial Completion, if Contractor shall neglect, refuse, or fail to complete the remaining Work
within the Contract Time or any proper extension thereof granted by GCLBA, Contractor shall pay GCLBA
$250.00 for each day that expires after the time specified in the Term of Contract for completion and
readiness for final payment until the Work is completed and ready for final payment.

INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE. During the term of the contract the Contractor must carry and
maintain current insurance coverage of the types and amounts required as set forth in the Insurance
Checklist as defined in Attachment A of the solicitation documents. The GCLBA must be named as
additional insured on all certificates of insurance. If insurance information changes the Contractor must
notify the GCLBA immediately of the change.

Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless GCLBA, and their respective directors, officers,
employees, agents, sureties and servants, from and against all damages, liabilities, claims, suits demands,
judgments and awards (including attorney’s fees and other expenses) on account of any damage to
property, or injury (including death) to persons (including any damage or injury to the property or person
of any employee of contractor, other subcontractor), or which may occur or be alleged to have occurred
in connection with the performance of the Work, whether or not GCLBA is alleged to be concurrently
negligent; provided, however, Contractor does not assume responsibility for liability to the proportional
extent it arises from the active negligence of GCLBA.

The Contractor shall be solely responsible for any fines, penalties, fees, or other costs imposed by any
governmental or regulatory authority due to the Contractor’s failure to comply with applicable laws,
regulations, permits, or contractual obligations. If any such fines, penalties, fees, or costs are assessed
against the Owner due to the actions, omissions, or negligence of the Contractor, its employees, agents,
or subcontractors, the Contractor shall promptly reimburse the Owner for the full amount of such fines,
penalties, fees, or costs.
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TERMINATION. Either party may terminate this contract at its convenience at any time by giving written
notice at least 30 days before the effective date of such termination to the other party of such termination
and specifying the effective date. Partial terminations of the Work may only be undertaken with the prior
approval of the GCLBA. In the event of any termination for convenience, all finished or unfinished
documents, data, studies, surveys, maps, models, photographs, reports or other materials prepared by
Contractor under this contract shall, at the option of the GCLBA, become the property of the GCLBA, and
Contractor shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any satisfactory work
completed on such documents or materials prior to the termination. The Contractor agrees to adhere to
all requirements as outlined in 2 CFR 200 Subpart D, §200.339 - §200.342. These requirements include all
contracts in excess of $10,000 must address termination for cause and for convenience by the non-federal
entity including the manner by which it will be effected and the basis for settlement.

The GCLBA may also immediately suspend or terminate this Contract for cause if Contractor materially
fails to comply with any term of this Contract, or with any of the rules, regulations or provisions referred
to herein; and the GCLBA may declare the Contractor ineligible for any further participation in GCLBA
contracts in accordance with 2 CFR 200.

This contract may also be immediately terminated by the GCLBA for reasons of substandard or non-
performance, diminution of funds, or any reasons related to changing objectives of the GCLBA. The GCLBA
reserves the right to cancel contracts for non-compliance with the terms of this Contract, reporting
requirements as defined in the Work, and any of such rules, regulations, or orders as may be applicable
to the Work and the funding source under which the Work is undertaken. Three months of non-
compliance may result in automatic termination.

USE OF CITY OF FLINT WATER: Any contractor that is illegally using the City of Flint water/fire hydrants
will face consequences including the possibility of debarment by the Genesee County Land Bank.

WARRANTY. In addition to any other warranties set forth elsewhere in this Contract, Contractor warrants
that Work performed and materials furnished under this Contract conform to the Contract requirements
and as required in the Request For Proposals, and are free of any defect of equipment, material or design
furnished, or workmanship performed by Contractor or any of its subcontractors or suppliers of any
tier. Such warranty shall continue for a period of one (1) year from the date of final acceptance of the
Work by GCLBA. Under this warranty, Contractor shall remedy at its own expense any such failure to
conform or any such defect. In addition, Contractor shall remedy at its own expense any damage to real
or personal property owned or controlled by Owner/Relevant Parties when that damage is the result of
Contractor’s failure to conform to Contractor requirements or of any defect in equipment, material,
workmanship or design furnished by Contractor. Contractor shall also restore any work damaged in
fulfilling the terms of this Article.

RE-INSPECTION FEE.
a. Ifthe Contractor’s work fails an inspection from a GCLBA authorized consultant, GCLBA will charge
Contractor for the failed inspection by the amount GCLBA is billed for the failed inspection.
b. If the Contractor’s work fails the GCLBA’s inspection after Contractor requests inspection, the
GCLBA will charge Contractor a $75 re-inspection fee per re-inspection.

COUNTERPARTS. This Contract may be executed in one or more counterparts, (each of which shall be
deemed to be an original) all of which shall be considered one and the same contract and shall become
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effective when one or more counterparts have been signed by each of the parties and delivered to the
other party, it being understood that all parties need not sign the same counterpart.

SIGNATURES. The parties agree that signatures on this contract may be delivered by facsimile or
electronically in lieu of an original signature and agree to treat facsimile or electronic signatures as original
signatures that bind them to this contract.

MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT. No modification of this Contract will be made except by the written
addendum, signed by the Contractor and the GCLBA.

NOTICES. Any notices or modifications given under this contract will be in writing and served personally
or sent by certified or registered mail. Such notice is effective upon receipt by the other party.

Notices for the OWNER/GCLBA should be sentto: ~ (DIRECTOR NAME), Executive Director
GENESEE COUNTY LAND BANK AUTHORITY
452 S. Saginaw Street, 2" Floor
Flint, Michigan 48502

Notices for the Contractor should be sent to: (NAME OF AUTHORIZED BUSINESS REPRESENTATIVE)
(NAME OF BUSINESS ENTITY)
(ADDRESS OF BUSINESS ENTITY)

CONTRACT ENTERED INTO BY:

GENESEE COUNTY LAND BANK AUTHORITY (NAME OF BUSINESS ENTITY)
(DIRECTOR NAME), Executive Director (NAME OF AUTHORIZED BUSINESS REPRESENTATIVE)
Date Date
Witnessed by: Witnessed by:
Email:
Phone:

Federal Identification Number:

License Number:
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